July 2, 2009
IA-09-028

Martin Ferenc
[HOME ADDRESS DELETED
UNDER 10 CFR 2.390(a)]

SUBJECT: NOTICE OF VIOLATION (Investigation Report No. 2008-037)
Dear Mr. Ferenc:

This refers to the investigation conducted by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC)
Office of Investigations (Ol) Region | Field Office into events that occurred on January 22, 2008
at Advex Corporation (Advex). The purpose of the investigation was to determine whether you
deliberately caused Advex to be in violation of Condition 19 of its NRC license when you failed
to stop work and report an off-scale pocket dosimeter reading to the Radiation Safety Officer
(RSO). A detailed summary of this event was described in the Factual Summary of Ol
Investigation Report No. 1-2008-037, which was attached to an NRC letter to Advex, sent to you
on May 19, 2009.

In the May 19, 2009, letter, we provided you the opportunity to address the apparent violation
identified in the report by either attending a predecisional enforcement conference, using the
Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) process, or by providing a written response before we
made our final enforcement decision. On June 17, 2009 you informed Ms. Marie Miller of this
office, that you do not request a predecisional enforcement conference, ADR, or plan to provide
a written response at this time. Therefore, the NRC is proceeding with its enforcement action
based on the results of the Ol investigation.

Based on the information developed during the investigation, the NRC determined that a
deliberate violation of NRC requirements occurred. The violation is cited in the enclosed Notice
of Violation (Notice) (Enclosure 1). The violation occurred when you deliberately caused Advex
to be in violation of its Operating and Emergency (O&E) procedure, Item 10.C.5 as discussed in
Advex’s May 20, 2002 letter to NRC, which is referenced in Condition 19 of License No. 45-
16452-01. Specifically, Iltem 10.C.5 of the O&E procedure states that if a dosimeter is found to
be off-scale, an emergency situation shall be considered to exist, and the following steps should
be followed: (a) the individual shall immediately remove himself from the restricted area and
notify the RSO; and (b) the individual shall not work with or around radioactive material until a
thorough evaluation of the problem is completed and the individual is authorized to return to
work by the RSO. 10 CFR 34.47(d) imposes similar requirements. On January 22, 2009, when
your assistant radiographer’s pocket dosimeter was found to be off-scale, you and the assistant
continued work and did not notify the RSO, as required by the O&E procedure.

The NRC concluded that you were in violation of 10 CFR 30.10, which prohibits an employee of
a licensee from engaging in deliberate misconduct that causes, or would have caused, if not
detected, a licensee to be in violation of any rule, regulation, or order; or any term, condition, or
limitation of any NRC license. Enclosure 2 includes a copy of the letter and Notice of Violation
(NOV) issued to Advex. Given the significance of the underlying issue and the deliberate nature
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of your actions, this violation has been categorized in accordance with the NRC Enforcement
Policy at Severity Level lll. Any additional deliberate violations could result in more significant
enforcement action or criminal prosecution.

You are required to respond to this letter and should follow the instructions specified in the
enclosed Notice when preparing your response. The NRC will use your response, in part, to
determine whether further enforcement action is necessary to ensure compliance with
regulatory requirements.

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.390 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of this letter, its
enclosures, and your response, will be made available electronically for public inspection in the
NRC Public Document Room or from the NRC’s document system (ADAMS), accessible from
the NRC Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html. To the extent possible, your
response should not include any personal privacy, proprietary, or safeguards information so that
it can be made available to the public without redaction.

The NRC also includes significant enforcement actions on its Web site at
(http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-collections/enforcement/actions/). In addition, this letter will
be maintained by the Office of Enforcement in an NRC Privacy Act system of records, NRC-3,
“Enforcement Actions Against Individuals.” The NRC-3 system notice, which provides detailed
information about this system of records, can be accessed from the NRC Web site at
http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/foia/privacy-systems.html.

Please feel free to contact Ms. Miller of my staff at 610-337-5205, if you have any questions.
Sincerely,
/RA/

Samuel J. Collins,
Regional Administrator

Enclosures: 1. Notice of Violation
2. Letter and Notice of Violation to Advex

cc: w/ enclosures:
Commonwealth of Virginia
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of your actions, this violation has been categorized in accordance with the NRC Enforcement
Policy at Severity Level lll. Any additional deliberate violations could result in more significant
enforcement action or criminal prosecution.

You are required to respond to this letter and should follow the instructions specified in the
enclosed Notice when preparing your response. The NRC will use your response, in part, to
determine whether further enforcement action is necessary to ensure compliance with
regulatory requirements.

In accordance with 10 CFR 2.390 of the NRC's "Rules of Practice," a copy of this letter, its
enclosures, and your response, will be made available electronically for public inspection in the
NRC Public Document Room or from the NRC’s document system (ADAMS), accessible from
the NRC Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html. To the extent possible, your
response should not include any personal privacy, proprietary, or safeguards information so that
it can be made available to the public without redaction.

The NRC also includes significant enforcement actions on its Web site at
(http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-collections/enforcement/actions/). In addition, this letter will
be maintained by the Office of Enforcement in an NRC Privacy Act system of records, NRC-3,
“Enforcement Actions Against Individuals.” The NRC-3 system notice, which provides detailed
information about this system of records, can be accessed from the NRC Web site at
http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/foia/privacy-systems.html.

Please feel free to contact Ms. Miller of my staff at 610-337-5205, if you have any questions.
Sincerely,
/RA/

Samuel J. Collins,
Regional Administrator

Enclosures: 1. Notice of Violation
2. Letter and Notice of Violation to Advex

cc: w/ enclosures:
Commonwealth of Virginia
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NOTICE OF VIOLATION

Marc Ferenc
[HOME ADDRESS DELETED 1A-09-028
UNDER 10 CFR 2.390]

During an NRC investigation completed on December 23, 2008, a violation of NRC
requirements was identified. In accordance with the NRC Enforcement Policy, the violation is
listed below:

10 CFR 30.10 requires, in part, that any contractor or employee of a licensee may not
engage in deliberate misconduct that causes or would have caused, if not detected, a
licensee to be in violation of any rule, regulation, or order; or any term, condition, or
limitation of any license issued by the Commission.

10 CFR 34.47(d) requires, in part, that if an individual's pocket chamber is found to be
off-scale and the possibility of a radiation exposure cannot be ruled out as the cause, the
individual’s personal dosimeter must be sent for processing within 24 hours. In addition,
the individual may not resume work associated with licensed material use until a
determination of the individual’s radiation exposure has been made. This determination
must be made by the Radiation Safety Officer (RSO) or the RSO’s designee.

Condition 19 of License No. 45-16452-01 requires, in part, that the licensee shall
conduct its program in accordance with statements, representations, and procedures,
including the Operating and Emergency (O&E) Procedure, contained in the letter dated
May 20, 2002 (ML021420458).

Item 10.C.5 of the letter dated May 20, 2002 states that if a dosimeter is found to be off-
scale, an emergency situation shall be considered to exist, and the following steps shall
be followed: (a) The individual shall immediately remove himself from the restricted area
and notify the RSO and (b) The individual shall not work with or around radioactive
material until a thorough evaluation of the problem is completed and he is authorized to
return to work by the RSO.

Contrary to the above, on January 22, 2008, you engaged in deliberate misconduct that
caused Advex Corporation to be in violation of the licensee’s O&E Procedure for an off-
scale pocket dosimeter. Specifically, after the assistant radiographer’s pocket dosimeter
went off-scale, you, as the lead radiographer, continued to work and did not notify the
RSO that the pocket dosimeter had gone off-scale.

This is a Severity Level Ill violation (Supplement VI).

Pursuant to the provisions of 10 CFR 2.201, Martin Ferenc is hereby required to submit a
written statement or explanation to the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, ATTN: Regional
Administrator, Region |, 475 Allendale Rd., King of Prussia, PA 19406, and marked "Open by
Addressee Only”, with a similar marking, within 30 days of the date of the letter transmitting this
Notice of Violation (Notice). This reply should be clearly marked as a "Reply to a Notice of
Violation: 1A-09-028” and should include: (1) the reason for the violation, or, if contested, the
basis for disputing the violation, (2) the corrective steps that have been taken and the results
achieved, (3) the corrective steps that will be taken to avoid further violations, and (4) the date
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when full compliance was or will be achieved. If an adequate reply is not received within the
time specified in this Notice, an order or a Demand for Information may be issued as to why
such other action as may be proper should not be taken. Where good cause is shown,
consideration will be given to extending the response time.

If you contest this enforcement action, you should also provide a copy of your response, with
the basis for your denial, to the Director, Office of Enforcement, United States Nuclear
Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555-0001.

You may still request use of the Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) process with the NRC in
an attempt to resolve this issue. As described in our May 19, 2009, letter, ADR is a general
term encompassing various techniques for resolving conflict outside of court using a neutral
third party. Additional information concerning the NRC’s program is described in the enclosed
brochure (NUREG/BR-0317) and can be obtained at http://www.nrc.gov/about-
nrc/requlatory/enforcement/adr.html. The Institute on Conflict Resolution (ICR) at Cornell
University has agreed to facilitate the NRC’s program as a neutral third party. Please contact
ICR at 877-733-9415 within 10 days of the date of this letter if you are now interested in
pursuing resolution of this issue through ADR.

Because your response will be made available electronically for public inspection in the NRC
Public Document Room or from the NRC’s document system (ADAMS), accessible from the
NRC Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/adams.html, to the extent possible, it should not
include any personal privacy, proprietary, or safeguards information so that it can be made
available to the public without redaction. If personal privacy or proprietary information is
necessary to provide an acceptable response, then please provide a bracketed copy of your
response that identifies the information that should be protected and a redacted copy of your
response that deletes such information. If you request withholding of such material, you must
specifically identify the portions of your response that you seek to have withheld and provide in
detail the bases for your claim of withholding (e.g., explain why the disclosure of information will
create an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy or provide the information required by

10 CFR 2.390(b) to support a request for withholding confidential commercial or financial
information). If safeguards information is necessary to provide an acceptable response, please
provide the level of protection described in 10 CFR 73.21. This letter will be maintained by the
Office of Enforcement in an NRC Privacy Act system of records, NRC-3, “Enforcement Actions
Against Individuals.” The NRC-3 system notice, which provides detailed information about this
system of records, can be accessed from the NRC Web site at http://www.nrc.gov/reading-
rm/foia/privacy-systems.html.

Dated this 2nd day of July 2009
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